
Principles of the Unalaska Planning Commission 
1. The Position: In any community, the position of Planning Commissioner is a highly respected and 

honored one.   
 

2. The Job: The job of Planning Commissioner is to serve the public, as representatives of the City 
Council and to the best of their ability, in ensuring sound planning and growth management in 
Unalaska.  All decisions of the Planning Commission should be based on sound planning 
principles and practices, and not on the personal opinion of individual Planning Commissioners.  
Once the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to the City Council, the job of the 
Planning Commissioners and Planning Commission is over, in terms of that particular action.  
 

3. Integrity: Planning Commissioners are appointed by City Council.  The actions, behavior, and 
comportment of each Planning Commissioner reflect not only on that Planning Commissioner’s 
integrity – but also on the integrity of the City Council and of the entire City government. 
 

4. Collaboration: An individual Planning Commissioner is not a “lone wolf,” but is part of a collective 
body.  As such, each Planning Commissioner is expected to act in a collaborative manner with 
his and her fellow Planning Commissioners. 
 

5. Respect Each Other: While it is understandable to sometimes disagree with your fellow Planning 
Commissioners on issues brought before the body, and appropriate to publically vocalize that 
disagreement during Planning Commission meetings, a Planning Commissioner should always 
respect the opinion of their fellow Commissioners and treat each other with respect.   
 

6. Majority Rules: It is important to remember that, at the end of the day, the majority rules.  So, 
after each action is brought before the body, discussed, and voted upon, Planning 
Commissioners must accept and respect the rule of the majority – even if the ruling was counter 
to an individual Commissioner’s position.   
 

7. Respect Staff: A Planning Commissioner should respect the opinion of City Planning Staff, 
whether the Planning Commissioner agrees with staff or not. Planning Staff Members are 
professionals who are employed to serve not only the Planning Commission and general public, 
but the City Council. 
 

8. The Las Vegas Rule: What comes before the Planning Commission must stay before the 
Planning Commission.  This means there can be no outside negotiating with petitioners or with 
the public regarding applications brought before the Commission.  And, all discussions – pro or 
con – concerning a petition before the Planning Commission, must take place solely within 
Planning Commission meetings.   
 

9. Respect Applicants and Public: Each Planning Commissioner must always show professionalism 
and respect for applicants and the general public – regardless of the position held by that 
Planning Commissioner or by the Planning Commission. 
 

10. Upholding the Principles: Any member of the Planning Commission who finds that he or she 
cannot uphold and abide by the above principles should resign from the Commission.  



CONDUCTING A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

 
The following is the sequence of events that is followed by the City of Unalaska Planning 
Commission and Platting Board in conducting a Public Hearing before the body. 
 

1. The Public Hearing is opened by the Chair of the Planning Commission/Platting 
Board who reads from the agenda. 

 
2. Any Ex-Parte questions or Commission member involvement are raised. If a 

Commission member(s) is excused, this is the proper time. 
 

3. Presentation by the staff. This is a short summary of the application, explanation 
of any maps, plats, exhibits, and code standards that might apply to the 
application. New written information not in the board packet is provided at this 
time. 

 
4. Presentation by the applicant. The applicant bears the responsibility for making 

the case or argument before the Commission. This is the time for Board members 
to ask questions of the applicant. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant 
should be conducted at this step (Step 4), while the public hearing is still open. 

 
5. Public Testimony. This includes those who are opposed to the application, and 

also the public in general. 
 

6. Rebuttal by the applicant. Final questions of all parties by the Commission. 
 

7. The Chair closes the Public Hearing and Commission deliberations begin. Once 
the hearing is closed, DO NOT REOPEN unless absolutely necessary. Questions 
of staff, the applicant, and the public are acceptable but uninitiated testimony is 
not. Attempts to “negotiate” with the applicant should be conducted at Step 4, not 
after the public hearing is closed. 

 
8. Commission discusses or debates the application. A motion must be made, with a 

second, and then final discussion. If a motion falls, an amendment(s) could be 
made to further or facilitate Commission final action. After “final action” is taken, 
reconsideration is possible per 8.04.060(G). 

 
 
 

 
DON’T BEND THE RULES FOR ONE, UNLESS YOU CHANGE THE RULES 

FOR ALL. 



CITY OF UNALASKA 

UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

AGENDA/PUBLIC NOTICE 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

June 27, 2013 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 

The purpose of the meeting will be to consider matters brought to the attention of the Planning 
Commission & Platting Board and will include the following. The typical process for discussing an item 
is as follows:  

 
1. Staff presentation,  
2. Applicant presentation,  
3. Public comments,  
4. Motion/discussion/vote.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA  
 
3. APPEARANCE REQUESTS  
 
4. ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
5. MINUTES  

 Regular Meeting May 16, 2013  
 
Public Hearing Action Items:  
 
6. Variance for a Lot Width Reduction from 60 feet to 50 feet to allow for the subdivision of Lot 6 of 

Willow Estates Subdivision, Plat Number 98-27, Aleutian Island Recording District and located on 
Steward Road. (Owner/Applicant: Monica Henning; Property ID: 06-09-430)  

 
7. Preliminary Plat of Unalaska Tideland Survey 101, a 16-acre subdivision of UTS 101 Tract B, Plat 

Number 98-28, Aleutian Island Recording District and located on Ballyhoo Road. (Owner/Applicant: 

City of Unalaska; Property ID: 02-05-500) 

 
 

Regular Meeting:  No items. 

 
Worksession:  No items. 
  
8. OTHER BUSINESS  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT  
 



CITY OF UNALASKA 
UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting 
CHAIR AGENDA 

June 27, 2013 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 

Call to Order:  State time for the record. 

Roll Call:  Ask for a roll call. 

Additions to Agenda:  Ask staff. 

Appearance Requests:  Ask if anyone has requested to appear. 

Minutes:  Minutes from the public hearing and regular meeting held on May 16, 2013. 

1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve. 
2. Call for a second to the motion. 
3. Commission discussion. 
4. Close the Commission discussion. 
5. Vote. 

 
Announcements/Public Input:  Any subject. 

Public Hearing:  

1. Public Hearing to review the Variance for a Lot Width Reduction from 60 feet to 50 
feet to allow for the subdivision of Lot 6 of Willow Estates Subdivision, Plat Number 
98-27, Aleutian Island Recording District and located on Steward Road. 
(Owner/Applicant: Monica Henning; Property ID: 06-09-430) 
 

a. Open the Public Hearing. 
b. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of 

Interest from Commissioners. 
c. Staff Presentation. 
d. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
e. Applicant Presentation. 
f. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant. 
g. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.) 
h. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public. 
i. Close the Public Hearing. 
j. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve 

Resolution 2013-08 
k. Call for a second to the motion. 
l. Commission discussion. 
m. Close the Commission discussion. 
n. Vote on the Resolution. 
o. Close the public hearing and call for a motion to move into a regular meeting. 
p. Ask for a second. 
q. Call for a vote by consensus (“all in favor of adjourning into a regular meeting, 

say aye”). 
 
 
 



 
2. Public Hearing to review the Preliminary Plat of Unalaska Tideland Survey 101, a 16-

acre subdivision of UTS 101 Tract B, Plat Number 98-28, Aleutian Island Recording 
District and located on Ballyhoo Road. (Owner/Applicant: City of Unalaska; Property 
ID: 02-05-500) 
 
a. Open the Public Hearing. 
b. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of 
Interest from Commissioners. 
c. Staff Presentation. 
d. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
e. Applicant Presentation. 
f. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant. 
g. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.) 
h. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public. 
i. Close the Public Hearing. 
j. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve 
Resolution 2013-09. 
k. Call for a second to the motion. 
l. Commission discussion. 
m. Close the Commission discussion. 
n. Vote on the Resolution. 
o. Close the public hearing and call for a motion to move into a regular meeting. 
p. Ask for a second. 
q. Call for a vote by consensus (“all in favor of adjourning into a regular meeting, 
say aye”). 

 
 
Regular Meeting : No items 
Work Session : No items 
 

Other Business:  
 
Adjournment. State time for the record. 
  



 
 
Chair Help Sheet 

 
Approval of Minutes Steps: 
 
1. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve. 
2. Call for a second to the motion. 
3. Commission discussion. 
4. Close the Commission discussion. 
5. Vote. 
 
Public Hearing Steps: 
 
1. Open the Public Hearing. 
2. Chair calls for potential Ex Parte Communications and potential Conflicts of Interest from 

Commissioners. 
3. Staff Presentation. 
4. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of staff. 
5. Applicant Presentation. 
6. Ask if Commissioners have any questions for the applicant. 
7. Public Testimony.  (Ask person to state name for the record.) 
8. Ask if Commissioners have any questions of the public. 
9. Close the Public Hearing. 
10. Open the Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2013-xx. 
11. Call for a second to the motion. 
12. Commission discussion. 
13. Close the Commission discussion. 
14. Vote. 



Page 1 of 7 
 

CITY OF UNALASKA 

UNALASKA, ALASKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

Thursday, May 16, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

7:00 P.M. 

 
1. Call to Order:     
 
Chair Chris Bobbitt called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 

Staff Present:     
Erin Reinders, AICP, Planning Director 
Veronica De Castro, Planning Administrative Assistant 
Nancy Peterson, Public Works Director 
  

Roll Call:     
Commissioners present: 

Vicki Williams 
Steven Gregory 
Chris Spengler 
Chris Bobbitt 
Peter Sturdivant 

 
2. Revisions to the Agenda:  
 
Staff noted the need to elect a Chair and Vice Chair. Chair Chris Bobbitt said that the Election of 
Officers will be addressed in the housekeeping portion. 
 
3. Appearance Requests:  

 
None 

 
4. Announcements: 

 

Ms. Erin Reinders announced that she was able to talk with the American Planning Association 
representatives regarding the Community Planning Assistance Team when she was in Chicago 
for the APA national conference. They are now starting to put together some plans and looking 
at September to have the team here. It will be an intensive visit with a lot of meetings and back 
and forth but she will keep the Planning Commission updated.  

 
5. Minutes:  
 
Ms. Vicki Williams moved to approve the minutes from the February 21, 2013 meeting. There 
was a second. Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any questions about the minutes. Hearing none, 



Page 2 of 7 
 

Chair Bobbitt called for vote on the minutes and the motion passed by unanimous consensus (5-
0). The minutes from the February 21, 2013 meeting were adopted. 
 

SPECIAL ITEM-Election of Officers: 

 
Chair Bobbitt informed fellow commissioners he is not sure how long he will be on the island 
now that his children had graduated and his wife accepted a job in Washington. He said to keep 
that in mind when making the nominations. Chair Bobbitt offered be a resource person and 
collaborate with the next Planning Commission officers. 
 
Chair Bobbitt called for nominations for the position of Chair. Vicki Williams nominated Chris 
Bobbitt as Chair. Steven Gregory seconded the motion. Chair Bobbit asked if there were any 
other nominations. Hearing none, Chair Bobbit called for a vote. The vote was unanimous (4-0) 
with the Chair abstaining. The motion passed. 
 
Chair Bobbitt called for nominations for the position of Vice Chair. Vicki Williams nominated 
Steven Gregory as Vice Chair. Chris Spengler seconded the motion. Chair Bobbit asked if there 
were any other nominations. Hearing none, Chair Bobbit called for a vote. The vote was 
unanimous (5-0) and the motion passed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTION ITEMS: 

 

6.  Preliminary Plat of Delta Western Subdivision, a 15.24 acre subdivision of Parcel 1-A 

and Tract B, Ptarmigan Flats, Subdivision, Plat Number 90-5 and Alaska Tideland 

Survey Number 1353, Plat Number 88-4, Aleutian Island Recording District. 

(Owner/Applicant: Rick Miller, CEO, Ounalashka Corporation/FDOC, Inc.; Property IDs: 
04-03-340, 04-03-345, and 01-10-180) 

 
Staff Presentation: Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte 
communication or conflicts of interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, the Chair called for 
staff presentation. 
 
Staff briefly informed everyone that she has made revisions to Resolution 2013-05 and that 
the updated copy is on their table. Staff explained that the purpose of this plat is to relocate a 
few easements, vacate a new easement that is the direct result of construction going on in the 
area. The resolution addresses the property boundaries adjacent to the tideland because some 
areas were filled and it impacts the acreage of the property. This adjustment also allows for 
the building setbacks to be met. The new conditions in the resolution outline the correction 
that has to be made to the lot number and subdivision name all of which have already been 
discussed with the applicant.  
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any questions from the commissioners. Peter Sturdivant 
clarified that the extra acreage from the filling of the tideland was to accommodate the 
warehouse. Staff confirmed and said that it would add to the buildable area in the property.  
 



Page 3 of 7 
 

Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions from the Commissioners. Hearing 
none, Chair Bobbitt asked if the applicant or if any from the public who would like to speak 
on this issue. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt closed the public hearing opened the Commission 
discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2013-05. 
 
Motion: Vicki Williams motioned to approve Resolutions 2013-05. There was a second. 
 
Vote: The vote was unanimous (5-0). The motion carried. 

 
7.  Variance for a Parking Requirement Reduction from 40 parking spaces to 20 parking 

spaces for the proposed Delta Western Warehouse located at 1617 East Point Road, 

Tract B Ptarmigan Flats Subdivision, and Plat Number 90-5. (Owner: Rick Miller, CEO, 

Ounalashka Corporation/FDOC, Inc; Applicant: Tim Hunter, Operations Manager, Delta 

Western; Property ID: 04-03-340)  
 

Staff Presentation: Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte 
communication or conflicts of interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, the Chair Bobbitt called 
for staff presentation. 
 
Staff explained that the applicant is requesting a variance for a reduction of parking 
requirement of a warehouse which according to code should have one (1) parking space per 
1,000 square foot area. The required parking space for this structure is forty (40) that the 
applicant would like to reduce to twenty (20) parking spaces. Staff explained that in order for 
a variance to be approved it has to meet the tests of code. Staff found that the test were not 
bet and, with the Development Review Team, did not recommend approval of the variance 
request. If the Commission chose to grant the variance, staff had Resolution 2013-06 which 
outlined several conditions of approval. There have also been accommodations made by the 
Fire Department with regards to the construction of the warehouse just to increase the 
buildable space. All of these accommodations are listed in detail in the meeting packets. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked the Commissioners if they have any questions for the staff. Peter 
Sturdivant inquired if there were any other objections to the reduction of parking other than 
what is written in the code. Staff sent out public notices to limited landowners within 300 
feet of the property but did not receive any feedback.  
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any more questions from the Commissioners. Hearing 
none, he asked if the applicant would like to testify. 
 
Applicant Testimony: Mr. Tim Hunter, Operations Manager of Delta Western, and 
applicant of the variance request said there are no office spaces inside the warehouse and 
they did not anticipate more than three (3) vehicles parked there at any given time. It’s used 
as a warehouse and activities would be moving items in and out and the space for parking 
could be used as additional buildable space.  
 
Chair Bobbitt asked what the 25-foot by 100-foot area on the south side of the building. Mr. 
Hunter replied it was the entry bay of the building and it is set back from the road. Chair 



Page 4 of 7 
 

Bobbitt asked what the intent and purpose of the space on the left side of the building was. 
Mr. Hunter said it will be used for storage. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions from the Commissioners. Hearing 
none, Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any further Public Testimony on this issue. Hearing 
none, Chair Bobbitt closed the public hearing at this point and opened the Commission 
discussion by calling for a motion to approve 2013-06.  
 
Main Motion: Mr. Sturdivant moved to approve Resolution 2013-06 as stated. There was a 
second. 
 
Commission Discussion: Mr. Sturdivant asked the applicant that if there will be future 
problems with parking the vacant space on the north side of the building can be used as 
additional parking spaces and would they have any objection to that. Mr. Tim Hunter said 
that they do not have any objections. Staff explained that in Resolution 2013-06 there are 
conditions spelled out that would help alleviate any safety issues.  
 
Mr. Gregory asked the staff if there is any difference in the requirement for parking space for 
a 40,000 square foot warehouse to that of a 40,000 square foot apartment building. Chair 
Bobbitt said there is a difference. Staff explained that parking spaces are broken down in the 
code depending on the building’s uses. Staff cited example that in a building used as a retail 
office the parking requirement would be one (1) parking space per 200 square foot as 
compared to one (1) for every 1,000 square foot. for a warehouse considering that people 
visiting the warehouse would not be as many as that of a retail store.  
 
Chair Bobbitt said that he worries about the instance when the season begins and trucks 
would be lining up to load and unload. That it would quickly fill up the twenty (20) parking 
spaces.  
 
Mr. Gregory said that when January comes snow would be piling up and he anticipates traffic 
in that area.  
 
Mr. Spengler asked if they considered the areas right across the warehouse as additional 
parking space. Mr. Tim Hunter said that they don’t have access to that side. He also said that 
they are not planning this to be permanent and if they need to work better they will if forty 
(40) parking spaces is not enough then they will find space for sixty (60) parking spaces. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any further discussions on the resolution. Hearing none, he 
called for a vote by consensus on Resolution 2013-06.  
 
Vote: The vote was (4-1), with Chair Bobbitt voting nay. The motion carried. 

 
8. Zoning Amendment to Rezone the property located at 271 Biorka Drove, the 

approximately 10 acre portion of USS 58 (Bldg. #616), from General Commercial to 

High Density Residential. (Owner/Applicant: Rick Miller, CEO, Ounalashka Corporation; 
Property IDs: 04-03-600) 



Page 5 of 7 
 

 

Staff Presentation: Chair Bobbitt opened the public hearing and called for any ex parte 
communication or conflicts of interest to be disclosed. Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt called for 
staff presentation. 
 
Staff explained that this is a rezoning request for a property from General Commercial to 
High Density Residential for a housing project. She stated that this is a site that is familiar to 
the Planning Commissioners as they have just recently approved a conditional use permit to 
allow for three (3) residential units.  The development that is being considered is just within 
the existing structure and renovates it into eight (8) residential units. Staff said that there are 
future housing development plans for this area. The request is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and staff recommends approval.  
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions from the Commissioners. Hearing 
none, Chair Bobbitt asked Mr. Rick Miller if he would like to speak on this issue. 
 
Applicant Testimony: Mr. Miller said that they are excited with the housing development 
and converting the warehouse into additional housing. He said that they are also exploring 
additional housing projects. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any questions from the Commissioners for Mr. Miller. 
Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any further Public Testimony on this issue. 
Hearing none, Chair Bobbitt closed the public hearing at this point and opens the 
Commission discussion by calling for a motion to approve Resolution 2013-07. 
 
Main Motion: Mr. Gregory moved to approve Resolution 2013-07. There was a second. 
 
Vote: Chair Bobbit asked if the commissioners would like to discuss the resolution. Hearing 
none, Chair Bobbitt called for a vote by consensus on the resolution. The vote was 
unanimous (5-0). The motion carried. 

 
REGULAR MEETING: 

 
No items. 
 
WORK SESSION: 

 

9. General Discussion on Title 8 Requirements: Private access agreements for landlocked 

lots; Minimum lot width requirement.  

 

Staff explained that these are ideas which may help to encourage housing development that she 
would like to run by the Planning Commissioners and to get guidance about the next steps. The 
two issues include the reduction of lot width requirement and the incorporation of Flag Pole lots.  
 
Staff said that a year or so ago the Planning Commission reduced the width of the front yard 
from 70 feet to 60 feet and that was a direct result of action item identified in the Comprehensive 



Page 6 of 7 
 

Plan in hopes of allowing easier subdivision of a property. Staff said she doesn’t know where the 
sixty feet width was based on. The Townsite’s lot widths typically range from 40 feet to 70 feet.  
Monica Henning has lot that is a 100-foot wide lot but couldn’t subdivide it without getting a 
variance although her lot is large enough to subdivide. Perhaps this is one thing Planning 
Commission might consider to further reduce the width of a lot’s frontage to 50 feet, which 
would still allow for a site to meet other development requirements. 
 
The other issue concerns an individual who owns a property in Haystack Hill and he has a lot 
that received a variance to be created that has absolutely no direct frontage to a road right-of-
way, which code does not allow. Through a private access easement, he was able to create the 
lot. Staff would not recommend doing that in the future, but that is where we are at right now. 
The lot is actually wide enough to be cut in half and have buildable space that could be sold. The 
current owner has requested an additional variance to create this additional lot with no direct 
access of the right of way, requiring any further owner to use the private access easement.  The 
Planning Commission did not support the request.  Private access easements are not public and 
have the potential to be problematic if a disagreement occurs between the properties owners. 
 
A Flag Pole lot may be useful in this or other situations, allowing a narrow access to a public 
right of way to create uniquely shaped lots that can be privately owned and sold. The “pole” 
section of the lot is access owned by the “flag” portion of the lot. Some communities do not like 
this design because properties end up with houses in what appears to be their backyard. Another 
matter to consider with flag pole lots is how wide the pole portion should be and how that width 
might be impacted if it is adjacent to another flag pole lot.  
 
Staff wanted to get these two issues for consideration and if the Planning Commission would like 
further research on these.  
 
Chair Bobbitt asked what the reduced minimum lot size is now. Staff answered that it is now 
6,000 sq. ft. from 10,000 sq. ft. Chair Bobbit said that if you take in consideration the side yard 
setbacks you will be left with only a 30-foot area to develop if you reduce the front width to 50 
feet then you would be left with a short and narrow house when the purpose was to keep the 
front of the house long and the side twice as long as the street. Chair Bobbitt said, however, that 
this was definitely worth considering.  
 
Chair Bobbitt stated that in his opinion the flag pole lot is more viable in community like ours 
that has a very limited amount of quality lots but where there are a lot of lands that are under 
developed. If access to these types of lands is made easier we would be able to fulfill the goals of 
the housing portion of the Comprehensive Plan. He said this option is worth exploring and 
looking for ways to do it but maybe not as outlined by allowing it in the code especially in 
existing circumstance but as mediation for a less desirable situation. 
 
Mr. Sturdivant said that per his experience regarding shared driveways, the issue is usually not 
legal but emotional.  
 
10. OTHER BUSINESS  

 



Page 7 of 7 
 

Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other business matters that the commissioners would like 
to discuss. Mr. Chris Spengler announced that he is resigning as Planning Commissioners 
effective at the end of the session because he is leaving Unalaska. He thanked everyone at the 
Planning Commission. Chair Bobbitt also thanked Mr. Spengler for his time serving as 
Commissioner.  
 
Staff inquired about the Commissioners availability to attend meetings in the coming summer 
months. Staff said there is likely going to be a Planning Commission meeting in June, but would 
work with the Commissioner set a date. 
 
Chair Bobbitt asked if there were any other questions from the Commissioners. There were no 
other businesses to discuss. 
  
11. ADJOURNMENT.   
 
Chair Bobbitt adjourned the meeting at 7:40PM. 
 
   
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF __________ 2013 BY THE CITY OF 
UNALASKA, ALASKA PLANNING COMMISSION. 
 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt Date 
Chair 
 
_________________________________ _________________________ 
Erin Reinders, AICP Date 
Recording Secretary 
 
Prepared by Veronica De Castro and Erin Reinders, Planning Department 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VARIANCE APPLICATION FOR LOT 6  

WILLOW ESTATES SUBDIVISION 



Item 6: Henning Lot Width Variance (Res. 2013-08) 6.27.2013 
 

1 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
Variance for a Lot Width Reduction from 60 feet to 50 feet to allow for the subdivision of Lot 6 of Willow 
Estates Subdivision, Plat Number 98-27, Aleutian Island Recording District and located on Steward Road.  
 

Project Information 
Land Owner Monica Henning 
Applicant Same as land owner 
Location  Steward Road 
Property Identification 06-09-430 
Application Type Variance Request 
Project Description The current lot width of 100 feet prevents the lot to be subdivided due to a minimum 

60-foot lot width requirement.  Applicant is requesting a minimum lot width of 50 
feet. 

Zoning Single Family/Duplex Residential  
Exhibits Draft Resolution 2013-08, Variance Application and Supplemental Materials, Plat 

Number 98-27, and Aerial imagery from GeoBlade 
Staff Recommendation Approval of Resolution 2013-08 
 
PLAN GUIDANCE 

1. The Unalaska Comprehensive Plan 2020 identifies a vision for the future that includes the following:  
 More housing – and more affordable housing – would be created within the City limits. This is “the key 

to our future,” without which Unalaska will not be able to retain its current residents or accommodate 
additional residents. Therefore, over the next ten years it will be essential to make more land available for 
the development of quality, affordable housing. 

2. The Unalaska Comprehensive Plan 2020 – Housing Plan identifies several goals including:  
 Increase affordable home-ownership opportunities for current and future City residents.  
 Increase the supply of affordable rental housing.  
 Amend the zoning code to provide more flexibility in redeveloping in-fill lots and new subdivisions for 

new housing development. 
 

CODE REQUIREMENTS 

1. UCO Section 8.08.020 (A) outlines the purpose of this Planning and Subdivision chapter of code, and 
included the following: 
 The purpose of this chapter is to promote and improve the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

citizens of the city.  
 This chapter is designed to encourage the orderly development and use of land; to prevent overcrowding; 

to prevent congestion on streets and highways; to provide adequate light and air; and to protect the public 
from fire, disease, and other dangers.  

 This chapter is designed to achieve the greatest economy to the city and its citizens while protecting the 
public interests involved in the subdivision of land within the city. 

2. UCO Section 8.08.090 (D) outlines the Subdivision Design Standards for new lots and includes the following:  
 The size, shape, and orientation of lots shall be appropriate for the location of the subdivision and for the 

type of development and use contemplated. 
 Lots shall be designed with a suitable proportion between width and depth. Long and narrow, or wide and 

shallow lots are undesirable. Normal depth shall not exceed 2 1/2 times width, or be less than 85 feet. 
Width of all lots shall not be less than 60 feet.  

 No lots, tracts, or parcels shall be created or designed which would create any non-conforming setbacks 
as they relate to any physical improvements which are subject to setback, building Separation, or other 
dimensional provisions. 



Item 6: Henning Lot Width Variance (Res. 2013-08) 6.27.2013 
 

2 

3. UCO Section 8.08.110 outlines the variance request and process including the following: 
 The Board may grant a variance from the provisions of this chapter on a finding that undue hardship may 

result from strict compliance with specific provisions or requirements of this chapter. The Board shall 
only grant variances that it deems necessary because of an undue hardship or that it finds desirable from 
the standpoint of public interest. In making its findings, as required below, the Board shall take into 
account the nature of the proposed use of land in the vicinity, the number of persons to reside or work in 
the proposed subdivision, and the probable effects of the proposed subdivision upon conditions in the 
vicinity. No variance shall be granted unless the Board finds that: 

o There are such special circumstances or conditions affecting the proposed subdivision such that 

strict application of the provisions of this chapter would clearly be impractical or undesirable to 

the general public or that strict application would be unreasonable or cause undue hardship to 

the applicant requesting the variance. In such cases, the subdivider shall first state his/her 

reasons in writing for a variance from the specific provision or requirement involved and submit 

the statement to the Board; 

o The granting of a specified variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to 

other property in the area in which the proposed subdivision is located; 

o Such variance will be in accord with the intent and purpose of this chapter and of the 

Comprehensive Plan of the city; and 

o The Board shall note its findings and the specific reasons for its action on the request for a 

variance, and shall also record its action in the form of a resolution. 

 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

1. The applicant has submitted a variance request for a minimum lot width of 50-foot to allow for subdivision of 
a 100-foot wide lot as well as supporting documentation including a lot layout, parking plan, and potential 
housing plans.  

2. The existing lot is 24,290 square feet.  According to the proposed lot layout exhibit, if subdivided to create 
two lots, one lot would be 12,311 square feet and the other would be 11,979 square feet. The square footage 
of these lots is well over the minimum requirements. 

3. The supporting documentation demonstrate that all other development requirements, such as parking and 
building setbacks, would be met if this variance were to be granted. 

4. The predominant land use in this area is residential.  This site is zoned Single Family Duplex and the 
surrounding area is zoned either Single Family Duplex or Medium Density Residential. The granting of this 
variance would not impact the land use or zoning designation of the lot or future lot. 

5. This would allow for additional housing development and private ownership of land, which is in desirable for 
the standpoint of the public interest.  

6. Utilities are readily available and will be able to accommodate a 2-lot subdivision of this lot.  Due to the angle 
of the existing ROW, a subdivision would likely require a 10-foot utility easement along the front yard lot 
line to allow for maintenance of an electric line.  Additionally, utility stub outs will be required for water, 
wastewater and electric.   
 

FINDINGS 

The purpose of a variance from platting and subdivision requirements is to grant relief to an applicant when a 
requirement causes undue or unnecessary hardship or when such a relief from requirements is desirable from the 
standpoint of the public interest.  In order to be granted, a variance request must meet the three tests of code 
identified in UCO Section 8.08.110(A) listed above. 
1. Staff finds that the granting of this variance to reduce the minimum lot width to 50 feet is in the public’s 

interest as it allows for additional housing to be provided in an existing residential area when such housing is 
a documented community need. Therefore, staff finds that the first test has been met. 

2. Staff finds that the granting of this variance to reduce the minimum lot width to 50 feet will not detrimental to 
the public welfare or nearby properties, as the applicant has demonstrated that all other land use and 
subdivision requirements will be able to be addressed.   Therefore, staff finds that the second test has been 
met. 



Item 6: Henning Lot Width Variance (Res. 2013-08) 6.27.2013 
 

3 

3. Staff finds that the granting of this variance to reduce the minimum lot width to 50 feet is consistent with 
Chapter 8.08 of UCO as well as the Comprehensive Plan as it would allow for orderly residential 
development.  Therefore, staff finds that the third test has been met. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and 
Subdivision), the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the City’s Developmental Review 
team, recommends approval of this variance and of Resolution 2013-08. 



Item 6: Henning Lot Width Variance (Res. 2013-08)  6.27.2013 
 

 1 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Planning Commission/Platting Board  

Resolution 2013-08 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING  VARIANCE FOR A LOT WIDTH REDUCTION FROM 60 FEET 

TO 50 FEET TO ALLOW FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF LOT 6 OF WILLOW ESTATES 

SUBDIVISION, PLAT NUMBER 98-27, ALEUTIAN ISLAND RECORDING DISTRICT AND 

LOCATED ON STEWARD ROAD. 

 
WHEREAS, Title 8 UCO Section 8.08.110 sets forth the procedures and requirement for variances for 
platting and subdivision requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, Monica Henning is an owner of Lot 6 of Willow Estates Subdivision (06-09-430); and 
 
WHEREAS, the current lot width of 100 feet prevents the lot to be subdivided due to a minimum 60-foot lot 
width requirement in accordance with 8.08.090(D)(2); and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner has submitted an variance request to allow for a lot width reduction to 50 feet to 
allow for the subdivision of this lot so long as all other requirements were met; and 
 
WHEREAS, the creation of additional land for housing is desirable from the standpoint of public interest; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission/Platting Board conducted a public hearing on June 27, 2013 in order 
to consider the testimony of the public; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds the Variance to be in accordance with the following tests of 
code: 

 There are such special circumstances or conditions affecting the proposed subdivision such that strict 
application of the provisions of this chapter would clearly be impractical or undesirable to the general 
public or that strict application would be unreasonable or cause undue hardship to the applicant 
requesting the variance. In such cases, the subdivider shall first state his/her reasons in writing for a 
variance from the specific provision or requirement involved and submit the statement to the Board; 

 The granting of a specified variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other 
property in the area in which the proposed subdivision is located; 

 Such variance will be in accord with the intent and purpose of this chapter and of the Comprehensive 
Plan of the city; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that in accordance with UCO Section 8.08.110, the Planning 
Commission grants a variance for a lot width reduction from 60 feet to 50 feet to allow for the subdivision of 
lot 6 of Willow Estates Subdivision.   This resolution becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) 
working days from the decision date, as outlined in UCO Section 8.08.130(A). 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _______ DAY OF ____________________, 2013, BY THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
________________________    __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt       Erin Reinders, AICP 
Chair        Recording Secretary 
 





198 ft

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Text Box
NOTE: THE CITY OF UNALASKA ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP. THE MAP WAS COMPILED USING AVAILABLE CITY RECORDS AND IS NOT MEANT TO BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A FIELD SURVEY. ALL ITEMS ON THE MAP ARE APPROXIMATE.  ALL UTILITIES SHOWN SHOULD BE FIELD LOCATED PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review of the Preliminary Plat of  

Unalaska Tideland Survey 101 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Item 7: Preliminary Plat of UTS 102 Tract B (Res. 2013-09) 6.27.2013 
 

1 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION & PLATTING BOARD  

STAFF REPORT 
 
Preliminary Plat of Unalaska Tideland Survey 101, a 16-acre subdivision of UTS 101 Tract B, Plat Number 98-
28, Aleutian Island Recording District and located on Ballyhoo Road. 
 

Project Information 

Land Owner City of Unalaska 
Applicant Same as above 
Location  Ballyhoo Road 
Property Identification  02-05-500 
Application Type Preliminary Plat 
Project Description Preliminary Plat to create 4 leasable tideland lots.  
Zoning Developable Tideland 
Exhibits Draft Resolution 2013-09, Preliminary Plat of UTS 101 Tract B, Parent Plat 98-28,  

and Aerial imagery from GeoBlade 
Staff Recommendation Approval with Conditions as identified in Resolution 2013-09 
 
BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this plat is to subdivide Tract B into four leasable tideland lots and one remainder lot to 
be dedicated as Ballyhoo ROW in the future.  What is identified as B-1 is currently leased to Magone 
Marine but was never formally subdivided. Based on past tideland lease applications that were never 
fully processed, the potential exists for Magone Marine to lease Tract B-2 and for Kloosterboer to lease 
Tract B-4. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
In accordance with the standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting 
and Subdivision), the City of Unalaska Department of Planning, in concert with the Development 
Review Team, have reviewed the preliminary plat and have identified the need for minor revisions.  
These revisions are particularly related to clarifying plat notes and final plat requirements.  
 
Staff recommends conditional approval of the preliminary plat for the UTS 101 Tract B, with conditions 
to be met before acceptance of the Preliminary Plat and/or submission of the Final Plat, as outlined on 
Resolution 2013-09. 
 



Item 7: Preliminary Plat of UTS 101 Tract B (Res. 2013-09)  6.27.2013 
 

 1 

City of Unalaska, Alaska 

Planning Commission/Platting Board  

Resolution 2013-09 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY PLAT OF UNALASKA TIDELAND SURVEY 
101, A 16-ACRE SUBDIVISION OF UTS 101 TRACT B, PLAT NUMBER 98-28, ALEUTIAN 

ISLAND RECORDING DISTRICT AND LOCATED ON BALLYHOO ROAD. 
 
WHEREAS, Title 8 UCO Section 8.08.070 sets forth the procedures for the subdivision and platting  
and provides that the Planning Commission shall act as the Platting Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Unalaska is the owner UTS 101 Tract B (02-05-500); and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Unalaska has submitted a platting application to divide Tract B into four 
leasable tidelands and a remainder tract to be dedicated as right of way in the future;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Departments of Planning, Public Works, Public Utilities and 
Public Safety have reviewed the proposed plat and have recommended revisions as described below; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, notices of the public hearing were posted and mailed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Unalaska Planning Commission held a public hearing on June 27, 2013 to 
consider this platting action and to hear testimony of the public and City Staff, and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Platting Authority approves the preliminary plat of 
the Delta Western Subdivision, with the following conditions of approval in accordance with the 
standards outlined in Unalaska City Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.08 (Platting and Subdivision): 

1. Tracts B-1, B-3 and B-4 show uplands between ROW and the tidelands.  These properties shall 
be identified by subdivision tract and plat number.  

2. Title shall be revised to add reference to Tract B-5. 
3. Note 1 shall be revised to correct the spelling of Tracts, and note 5 shall be deleted as it is a 

repeat of Note 1. 
4. Surveyor shall set one new primary monument and provide coordinates in NAD 83 Alaska State 

Plane Zone 10, U.S. foot. 
5. A closure report shall be submitted. 
6. A Mylar shall be submitted and that each corner of each tract of record shall be monumented.  
7. An electronic version of the final plat in a format approved by the Platting Authority shall be. 
 
Upon the correction of the aforementioned deficiencies submit a corrected preliminary plat to the 
Department of Planning for review and concurrence before proceeding to final plat. This conditional 
plat approval becomes effective if there are no appeals within ten (10) working days after the 
Planning Commission action and shall remain in effect for one year. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS _____DAY OF____________ 2013, BY THE PLATTING 
BOARD OF THE CITY OF UNALASKA, ALASKA. 
 
 
__________________   __________________________ 
Chris Bobbitt     Erin Reinders, AICP 
Chair      Secretary 







835 ft

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Line

veronica
Callout
  UTS 101

veronica
Text Box
NOTE: THE CITY OF UNALASKA ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS MAP. THE MAP WAS COMPILED USING AVAILABLE CITY RECORDS AND IS NOT MEANT TO BE SUBSTITUTED FOR A FIELD SURVEY. ALL ITEMS ON THE MAP ARE APPROXIMATE.  ALL UTILITIES SHOWN SHOULD BE FIELD LOCATED PRIOR TO EXCAVATION.


	Principles of the Planning Commission
	Conducting a Public Hearing
	Public Agenda
	Chair Agenda
	05-16-2013 Meeting Minutes
	Variance Application - Lot 6 Willow Estates Subdivision
	Staff Report
	Resolutions 2013--08
	Parent Plat 98-27 
	Aerial View of Lot 6, Willow Estates Subdivision 
	Variance Application

	Review of Preliminary Plat of UTS 101 
	Staff Report
	Resolution 2013-09
	Parent Plat 98-28 
	Preliminary Plat UTS 101
	Aerial View of UTS 101




